
BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL
TOWN HALL

DUKE STREET
BARROW-IN-FURNESS

Monday 21st September, 2020

To expedite the business of the meeting, Members are requested to give the 
Chief Executive adequate notice of any Amendment which they propose to raise.

To:   The Members of Barrow Borough Council

Mr Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen

You are hereby summoned to attend a virtual meeting of BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

to be held on TUESDAY, 29TH SEPTEMBER, 2020 COMMENCING AT 5.30 PM. for the 

transaction of the business specified below.

VIRTUAL MEETING - Link to view Live Stream via YouTube 

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in physical location 
following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.

Note: The Council will be live streaming the meeting on to the Barrow Borough Council 
YouTube Chanel and can be watched live via the below link.

The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items.

To view the meeting online click this link

Chief Executive
_______________

Business

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2.  URGENT ITEMS

To consider any items of business which the Chair decides should be considered 
as matters of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government 
Act 1972. [Urgent business may only be taken by reason of special 
circumstances” (which will be recorded in the minutes), the Chair of the meeting is 
of the opinion that the item should be considered as a matter of urgency.]

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBYFa9sjxuGwCW5BQwu9mlw/live


3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISPENSATIONS

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in respect of 
items on this agenda. and to consider any dispensations.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and transparency, 
to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary interests 
which they have already declared in the Register,  as well as any other registrable 
or other interests.  

4.  MINUTES

To confirm the Minutes of the Council’s proceedings held on 26th July, 2020.

5.  ANNOUNCEMENTS

To receive any announcements from the Chairman, Leader or Head of Paid 
Services.

6.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or 
present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later 
than 5pm two working days before the meeting. Information on how to make the 
application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s website 
www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
(jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by telephone on (07825206525).
 
(1) Questions and Representations

To receive any questions or representations which have been received 
from members of the public

 
(2) Deputations and Petitions

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 
members of the public.

7.  EXPLORATION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM AND DEVOLUTION 
(REPORT TO FOLLOW)

To consider a report on the exploration of local government reform and devolution 
for the Bay Area.

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


8.  MEMBER ROLE PROFILES

To seek approval for the role profiles for Members and the role of the Lead 
Member for inclusion in the Council’s Constitution.

9.  AMENDED CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS

To consider adoption of amendments to the Council’s Code of Conduct for 
Members.

10.  APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON

To consider extending the appointment of an Independent Person for code of 
conduct matters and matters relating to Officer Employment Procedural Rules.

11.  (A) TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING COMMITTEES AND 
CONSIDER RECOMMENDATIONS:

(1)  Planning 
(2)  Licensing Regulatory 
(3)  Licensing 
(4)  Executive 
(5)  Audit
(6)  Overview and Scrutiny

(B)  QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

Council has agreed that time be set aside for questions to the Leader of the 
Council. Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4 set out the procedure for questions to the 
Leader and the notice period required. The Leader will also take and questions 
without notice relevant to the reports and minutes detailed on the agenda.

12.  APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES TO FILL VACANCIES  

13.  NOTICE OF MOTION UNDER RULE 11

To consider the following motion signed by Councillor Ann Thomson and 
seconded by Councillor Hayley Preston:-

I move that our Council pass a motion declaring a Poverty Emergency, and that 
we look to set up a Poverty Truth Commission.

This will aid our aim of tackling the root causes of poverty and inequalities, which 
is central to the Council’s Growing Forward Agenda and is critical to the success 
of our Council Plan.

14.  NOTICE OF MOTION UNDER RULE 11

To consider the following motion signed by Councillor Mooney and seconded by 
Councillor Morgan:-

The mental health challenge for local authorities is an initiative led jointly by 
Centre for Mental Health, the Mental Health Foundation, the Mental Health 
Providers Forum, Mind, Rethink Mental Illness, the Royal College of Psychiatrists 
and YoungMinds. 



The aim of the challenge is to encourage and support local leadership for mental 
health and wellbeing through local authority elected members. The challenge 
asks councils to appoint a ‘member champion’ for mental health. In return, the 
national charities offer champions and their councils’ advice, information and a 
network of peers in similar roles.

The mental health challenge is already showing that local authority member 
champions have the potential to raise the profile of mental health and wellbeing 
in local communities, to enable councils to integrate mental health into the full 
range of their policies and responsibilities, and to link up with other local leaders 
to foster partnerships and encourage action to promote mental health and life 
chances. 

The challenge was launched in September 2013 and so far over 35 councils have 
taken the challenge and appointed member champions for mental health. 

This Council notes:

 1 in 4 people will experience a mental health problem in any given year.
 The World Health Organisation predicts that depression will be the second 

most common health condition worldwide by 2020.
 Mental ill health costs some £105 billion each year in England alone.
 People with a severe mental illness can die up to 20 years younger than 

their peers in the UK.
 The commitment demonstrated by staff who have attended training on 

Dementia, Mental Health and Suicide Awareness.
 The motion adopted in Nov 19 to promote suicide safer communities.
 The inclusion of mental health in the council’s Employee Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy (15 Jan 2020 Exec).

This Council believes:

 As a local authority we have a crucial role to play in improving the mental 
health of everyone in our community and tackling some of the widest and 
most entrenched inequalities in health.

 Mental health should be a priority across all the local authority’s areas of 
responsibility, including housing, community safety and planning.

 All councillors, whether members of the Executive or Scrutiny and in our 
community and casework roles, can play a positive role in championing 
mental health on an individual and strategic basis.

This Council resolves:

 To sign the Local Authorities’ Mental Health Challenge run by Centre for 
Mental Health, Mental Health Foundation, AMHP, Mind, Rethink Mental 
Illness, Royal College of Psychiatrists and YoungMinds.

 We commit to appoint the elected Health and Wellbeing spokesperson as 
‘mental health champion’ across the council.

 We will seek to identify a member of staff within the council to act as ‘lead 
officer’ for mental health.



The Council will also:

 Support positive mental health in our community, including in local 
schools, neighbourhoods, and workplaces.

 Work to reduce inequalities in mental health in our community.
 Work with local partners to offer effective support for people with mental 

health needs.
 Tackle discrimination on the grounds of mental health in our community.
 Proactively listen to people of all ages and backgrounds about what they 

need for better mental health.
 Continue to support staff who wish to participate in training on promoting 

good mental health.
 Continue to develop working relationships with local charities and 

voluntary sector to promote partnerships to improve the mental wellbeing 
of staff and residents.

I propose this motion is adopted by Council.



This page is intentionally left blank



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

A VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL of this Borough was held at 5.30 pm. 
on Tuesday the 28th day of July, 2020.

PRESENT:- Councillor Hamilton (Mayor in the Chair) and Councillors Assouad, 
Barlow, Biggins, Brook, Burns, Callister (except for Urgent Item), Cassidy, D. 
Edwards, H. Edwards, Gawne, Hall, Husband, Johnston (Minute Nos 22-30 
only), McEwan, McLeavy, Maddox, Morgan, Nott, Pemberton (except for Urgent 
Item), Preston, Roberts, Robson, Ronson, Seward, Shirley, C. Thomson, M. A. 
Thomson and Wall.

Officers Present:- Sam Plum (Chief Executive), Susan Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Steph Cordon (Director of People and Place), Debbie Storr (Head 
of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), Helen Houston (Development 
Services Manager - Policy, Regeneration and Information), Jon Huck 
(Democratic Services Manager) and Sharron Rushton (Democratic Services 
Officer).

Also Present:- Michael Barry (Cumbria County Council), Lauren Newby (Hatch 
Regeneris) and David Haughian (Cumbria County Council).

22 – Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Blezard, Burley, 
McClure, Mooney, Pidduck and Worthington.

23 – The Local Government Act, 1972 as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act, 1985 and Access to 
Information (Variation) Order 2006 – Urgent Item

RESOLVED:- That by reason of the special circumstances outlined below the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the following item of business not specified on 
the agenda should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency in 
accordance with Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Item Reason

COVID-19 Financial Management The nature of the report required
(Minute No. 40) an urgent decision that could not

wait until a future meeting.

24 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to 
Information (Variation) Order 2006

Discussion arising hereon it was

RESOLVED:- That under Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following 
item of business on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 3 (Minute No. 40) of Part One of Schedule 
12A of the said Act.

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



25 – Declarations of Interest

Councillor Burns declared an interest in Agenda Item 7 – Barrow-in-Furness 
Town Investment Plan Submission (Minute No. 29) as she was a Trustee of 
Women’s Community Matters.

Councillor Robson declared an interest in Agenda Item 7 – Barrow-in-Furness 
Town Investment Plan Submission (Minute No. 29) as he was married to the 
Senior Officer at Women’s Community Matters.

Councillor M. A. Thomson declared an interest in Agenda Item 7 – Barrow-in-
Furness Town Investment Plan Submission (Minute No. 29) as she was Chair of 
Trustees at Women’s Community Matters.

26 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 16th June, 2020 were taken as read and 
confirmed, subject to Councillor Shirley’s question to the Vice-Chair of Planning 
being added to the Minutes:

“In relation to the Housing Development at Lots Road which was presented to 
Planning Committee in March 2020, he had been contacted by a number of 
residents who had been disappointed that only a summary of their observations 
had been reproduced and presented to the Committee for consideration.  He 
requested full details be published”.  Councillor M A Thomson had clarified the 
matter.

27 – Public Participation

No questions, representations, deputations or petitions had been received in 
respect of the meeting.

28 – Announcements

There were no announcements from the Chairman, Leader or Head of Paid 
Service.

29 – Barrow-in-Furness Town Investment Plan Submission

There had been a presentation on the Barrow in Furness Town Investment Plan 
by Michael Barry and Lauren Newby to update Members on the Barrow Town 
Deal.

In September 2019 it had been confirmed that Barrow-in-Furness was among 
the 101 towns that would be invited to put forward Town Deal proposals valued 
at up to £25m to deliver economic growth in the town. 

The case for the investment would need to be articulated through an evidenced 
Town Investment Plan.  Development of the plan must be overseen by a Town 
Deal Board with Barrow Borough Council acting as accountable body for funding 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



received. The Government required that the Town Deal Board comprised a mix 
of the public and private sector, the third sector and MP. The role of the Town 
Deal Board had been discussed at the November 2019 meeting of the Executive 
Committee.

The development of the Town Deal would come forward in two phases with the 
first phase focused on the submission of the Town Investment Plan containing a 
set of project proposals and then the agreement of heads of terms. There would 
be a requirement to develop Full Business Cases through which delivery funding 
would be confirmed.

The Town Investment Plan had been considered at the meeting of the Town 
Deal Board on 24th July 2020 and the report sought confirmation that as 
accountable body Barrow Borough Council agree that the Town Investment Plan 
can be submitted to Government. 

Developing the Town Investment Plan

The Town Deal Board had promoted an ambitious approach to preparation of 
the Town Investment Plan, at the first meeting of the Town Deal Board it had 
been agreed to create a:

 Plan Development Group, responsible for overseeing plan development
 Communications and Engagement Group, responsible for preparing and 

implementing communications activity

They also had agreed that external consultancy support should be procured.  

Supported by those structures, early in the process the Board had been able to 
confirm a vision for the town:
 
To build on our economic strengths, rich industrial heritage, natural beauty  and 
sense of community to develop a town that is economically dynamic and 
diverse, sitting at the forefront of innovation and green growth, viewed  as a 
great place to live, study, work and visit and home to a healthy  population that 
can deliver a prosperous, inclusive and fair future

That in turn supported the creation of aligned objectives for the Town 
Investment Plan:

 To put residents at the centre of public service delivery;
 To build on our strengths to help Barrow become a centre of excellence 

and innovation for advanced manufacturing and clean growth;
 To create a resilient local economy through greater diversification, 

enhanced competitiveness and providing a wider range of quality 
employment opportunities;

 To grow the working age population by creating an attractive and vibrant 
place to live, work and visit;

 To equip people with the skills and confidence to achieve their potential 
to take full advantage of  opportunities;

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 To strengthen progression pathways through a dynamic and integrated 
approach to school, further and  higher education;

 To reduce deprivation and improve the physical and mental health and 
well-being of our community;

 To be a digitally connected and physically accessible town supporting 
walking, cycling and public transport;

 To deliver a more diverse and attractive housing offer while ensuring the 
continued renewal of our existing stock; and

 To achieve a vibrant town centre, leisure and service offer supporting the 
role of Barrow as a regional centre while enhancing our rich built and 
cultural heritage.

Supported by engagement activity and a technical appraisal process these were 
the basis for defining a short list of projects for which funding would be sought 
through the Town Investment Plan.

Project Funding Sought
Barrow Learning Quarter - Creation of new 
university campus and skills hub for Barrow

£13.4m

Community Wellbeing Hubs and Earnse Bay 
Outdoor Centre - Establishment of a network of 
community resilience hubs and a new outdoor 
skills and recreation facility on Walney.

£4.5m

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure - A 
transformative programme of walking and 
cycling infrastructure improvements within 
Barrow.

£4.5m

Housing Renewal Programme - A new housing 
market renewal programme focused on key 
areas of need.

£4m

Business & Enterprise Support - Developing a 
supportive business environment for Barrow to 
boost Barrow’s enterprise overall,

£1m

Place Development – Culture and Tourism - A 
programme of activity to promote the town 
together with a programme of events and 
activities 

£1m

Marina Village - The site would deliver high-
quality housing alongside leisure, retail and 
cultural development.

£1m

A profile of each of these schemes had been provided within the Town 
Investment Plan and were intended to really drive positive change within 
Barrow, enhancing access to opportunity while also supporting economic growth 
and the perception of Barrow as the place to live work to visit.  

These proposals also sought to lever, synergise and complement other funding 
streams and projects like the Future High Street Fund, private sector investment 
programmes; the All Electric Bus proposal, Low Carbon Barrow ERDF and 
Growth Fund applications and Marina Village.

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



For each of the Town Deal projects it was considered essential for them to be 
robustly developed and supported by clear evidence around the benefits they 
can achieve in deliverability and match funding.  To achieve this each project 
had a Strategic Outline Business Case prepared.

Accelerated Towns Fund 

Within the Government response to COVID-19 Barrow had been provisionally 
allocated an additional £750,000 of funding to be spent in 2020/21. That funding 
would be used for a number of complementary investments including acquisition 
of key sites to support the development of Marina Village, revitalise and 
repurpose key spaces in the town to support Place Development and aligned 
initiatives such as Future High Streets, and enhance Barrow’s outdoor activity 
offer aligned to Place Development and Community Wellbeing Hubs and Earnse 
Bay Outdoor Centre. These investments would support Covid-19 recovery and 
provide a platform for Towns Deal investment

Next Steps and Moving Forward

The submission of the Town Investment Plan, whilst a significant milestone, did 
not signify the end of the process.

The immediate focus would turn to addressing due diligence surrounding the 
deal whilst pushing for early agreement of the heads of terms. The July 
submission placed Barrow in the first wave of submissions and from here it was 
hoped that funding and projects could be realised as early as possible. That was 
important, especially as the town continued to recover from the impacts of 
COVID-19.

The heads of terms would be the mechanism through which the Government 
would signify which projects it would wish to see further developed and it was 
intended that the Executive Committee would be required to consider these.   

Following heads of terms, it would be necessary to prepare and submit Full 
Business Cases for each of the short listed projects.  To ensure effective 
ownership and use of resources, to date different organisation had led the 
development of projects, with Barrow Borough Council leading on Housing 
Market Renewal, Place Development, Marina Village and Business Support.  
Likewise the University of Cumbria would lead development of the Barrow 
Learning Quarter and Cumbria County Council on Community Resilience Hubs 
and Earnse Bay and Cycling and Walking Infrastructure.

To resource the next stage of development it was intended to retain that 
approach which the organisation leading specific projects would resource front 
funding development activity to be reimbursed once the schemes were 
contracted and Town Deal Funding could be accessed.  It was recommended 
that £100,000 of the Council’s financial reserves be allocated to enable critical 
progress to be maintained. That funding would be eligible for repayment once 
project funding was in place.

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Mindful that in acting as accountable body, Barrow Borough Council must be 
able to manage an effective process.  Within the deal £500,000 had been 
sought to support the accountable body role while working effectively with 
partners.

Engagement

The #BrilliantBarrow campaign had been a primary platform to engage 
community and business voices in the development of the Town Investment 
Plan. 

In supporting communication and engagement work the Town Deal Board had 
agreed to the formation of a Communications and Engagement Group.  That 
Task and Finish Group had been established to support the work of the Town 
Deal Board, responsible for preparing and implementing communications 
activity. The Group had developed a Town Deal Stakeholder Engagement Plan 
which was implemented in three stages. Covid-19 had changed the engagement 
planning dramatically as traditional forms of engagement were inappropriate due 
to lockdown and social distancing measures, with a shift to a more targeted and 
predominantly digital approach: 

1. Phase 1 Engagement: awareness raising activity through social media 
which had encouraged initial views to be shared through the #MyTowns 
government portal. A total of 140 unique posts had been provided. That 
had been complemented by social media analysis on activity related to 
Barrow and by c.25 one-to-one consultations with strategic and delivery 
partners.

2. Phase 2 Engagement: launch of the #BrilliantBarrow campaign and 
website encouraging the community to ‘have your say’. To date, over 230 
individual posts have been shared. 

3. Phase 3 Engagement: development of project stakeholder engagement 
plans and implementation through a mixed method approach including 
surveys and focus group activity. In total, 592 responses to the seven 
surveys had been secured to date, in addition to qualitative feedback 
shared via meeting notes and correspondence.  

The consultation feedback had supported the iterative development of the Town 
Investment Plan and associated Strategic Outline Business Cases for each 
shortlisted project. The feedback had been overwhelmingly positive, supportive, 
constructive and informative to guide the process of strategy development. 

A Stakeholder Engagement Plan to accompany the launch of Barrow’s finalised 
Town Investment Plan had been developed which articulated the commitment to 
ongoing dialogue and would ensure implementation of the Plan was responsive 
to stakeholder needs. 

It should be noted that although the guidance was clear that up to £25m of 
funding may be sought, it also stated that for exceptional proposals that could 
be exceeded.  The current ask for the Town Deal was £29.4m with a further 
£500,000 requested for programme support.  

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



Questions from Members were raised around how the schemes would be 
prioritised should the full amount of funding not be received and when the 
Members would be informed how the £750,000 acquired from Government in 
response to the Covid-19 pandemic would be accounted for.

In response it was stated that all schemes aligned with Government priorities 
and had been considered good value and the bid should be successful in order 
to deliver all schemes, albeit with conditions attached. The Towns Deal Board 
would make recommendations regarding the £750,000 acquired from 
Government and further discussions would follow

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts, and it 
was unanimously,

RESOLVED:- 

1. To approve the submission of the Barrow-in-Furness Town Investment 
Plan to MHCLG;

2. Subject to the agreement of heads of terms the Council provide up to 
£100,000 to support the development of full business cases required to 
access delivery funding, that funding would be reimbursed with the receipt 
of funding to deliver individual projects; 

3. To agree that Barrow Borough Council takes the role of accountable body 
for Barrow-in-Furness Town Investment Plan; and

4. To note that £162,019 of grant funding had been fully committed on 
consultancy services, business case development and community 
engagement, and had been supplemented by the Major Projects Reserve 
to the value of £12,660.

30 – Barrow Future High Street Fund Business Case Submission

There had been a presentation on the Barrow Future High Street Fund Business 
Case Submission by Helen Houston and David Haughian.

In 2019, Government had sought expressions of interest from Local Authorities 
who could benefit from funding to support the transformation of their high 
streets. Barrow Borough Council had submitted an expression of interest, and 
had been identified as one of 100 towns who had been invited to bid for up to 
£25 million from Future High Street Funding (FHSF). Government had sought 
Business Cases from each of the successful towns, with the deadline for 
submission by 31st July 2020. 

The Objectives of Barrow FHSF

The vision for Barrow Town Centre was to harness Barrow’s urban, historic 
character and waterfront to create a vibrant centre for work, shopping, study, 
living, leisure and accessing services. Supporting our residents, businesses and 
visitors from the local area, South Cumbria and beyond. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



The primary strategic objectives of the Barrow FHSF were as follows:

 Create a destination town centre that attracts people back into the town 
centre; more people using and visiting more often, and staying for longer.

 Boost civic pride and create a strong visual identity to the Town Centre
 Create a high quality, attractive and impressive market space that serves 

local businesses and attracts visitors
 Re-establish the Town Hall as a cultural and civic focal point for Barrow, 

opening its doors to the public and maximising its assets.
 Create an “Instagramable” attraction for Barrow – providing more reasons 

to visit and making it easier for people to stay.
 Creating safe and harder working spaces that encourage a diverse range 

of people to use their town centre and which better connects people to 
existing destinations and transport links. 

The current estimated cost of the preferred option in the Business Case was in 
the region of £25m (including risk allowances). The cost estimate would be 
refined within the final business case submitted to MHCLG on 31st July 2020.

The recommended route to package up the Barrow FHSF project had been 
identified following consideration of a number of procurement options. The 
assessment of procurement options considered the suitability of each option in 
the context of the delivery of a major project by Barrow Borough Council.

The Project funding contributions included in the Business Case to date was 
broken down as follows:

Funding Stream Funding contribution
Future High Street Fund (MHCLG) Up to £25m
Barrow Borough Council £1m

It was proposed that Barrow Borough Council provide up to £1m of co-funding to 
invest in the Future High Street Fund project. Barrow Borough Council could 
expect to receive a return on the investment through new income generation 
opportunities and reductions in existing subsidies.  

The report asked that delegated authority be given to the Director of People and 
Place, to submit a Business Case based on the proposal outlined in the report, 
to agree the arrangements for the Council to be responsible for delivery of the 
Project, the provision of co-funding.

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



Councillor H Edwards questioned if private sector funding would have an effect 
on the bid as the report did not identify funders? 

Councillor Hall questioned if there was something missing from the bid as he 
had concerns regarding the position Barrow was ranked in the National Audit 
Report?

Councillor Shirley questioned if the Council would continue to work in 
partnership to upgrade other areas of the town centre and ensure rural areas 
across the Borough felt the benefits of the fund?

It was confirmed that the private sector had been fully engaged and involved 
throughout the whole proposal. The National Audit Report was detailing how 
towns had been selected in the first instance and not how they currently ranked.
Partnership working would continue with the private sector to make the Borough 
a place people wanted to visit, however, this fund was specifically for Barrow 
Future High Street.

It was moved by Councillor Brook  and seconded by Councillor Roberts, and it 
was unanimously,

RESOLVED:- 

1. That delegated authority be given to the Director of People and Place, in 
consultation with the Chief Executive, Director of Resources and Leader of 
the Council, to submit a Business Case for the Barrow Future High Street 
project based on the proposal outlined in the report;

2. If the bid is successful that the Council provide up to £1m of co-funding to 
invest in the Barrow Future High Street Fund Project, with the funding to be 
repaid from new income generation activities or reductions in existing 
subsidies;

3. If the bid is successful that the Council agrees the inclusion of up to £25m 
of project funding in the Capital Programme from 2020/2021;

4. If the bid is successful that Barrow Borough Council would act as the 
Accountable body for the funding;

5. To note that the £150,000 of grant funding to reach this stage of the 
business case had been fully committed on consultancy services and had 
been supplemented by the Major Projects Reserve £4,330; and

6. To authorise the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Director of 
Resources, Leader and Chair of Executive Committee, to enter into a 
Grant Funding Agreement with MHCLG.

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



31 – Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025

The Homelessness Act 2002 placed a duty on local authorities to carry out a 
review of all forms of homelessness in their district area and to formulate and 
publish a homelessness strategy based on the results of the review.

The Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy sets out the Council’s position 
with regard to preventing homelessness, securing sufficient accommodation for 
people who were or may become homeless and securing support for people 
who were homeless.  The report sought incorporation of the Strategy into the 
Council’s Policy Framework.

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts, and it 
was

RESOLVED:- To approve the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 
2020-2025 for inclusion in the Council’s Policy Framework.

32 – Business and Planning Act 2020

The Business and Planning Act 2020 (”the Act”) had been implemented on 22nd 
July, 2020 and had introduced a streamlined process which allowed a licence 
holder, such as restaurants, cafes and bars, to place removable furniture such 
as tables and chairs on the paved highway adjacent to their premises. The 
measures supported businesses to operate safely whilst maintaining social 
distancing measures and facilitate much needed income generation cheaply and 
quickly. 

District authorities were responsible for receiving and processing licence 
applications and may charge an application fee for doing so. A licence could be 
granted for up to a year but not beyond 30th September 2021. The functions 
needed to be appropriately delegated to allow applications to be made, 
determined and enforced effectively and efficiently. 

Councillors D Edwards asked if the fee could either be free or reduced to a 
nominal charge to help struggling businesses?  Councillor H Edwards asked 
why funds allocated from the Government response to Covid-19 could not be 
used to help businesses. Councillor Hall questioned why the decision for setting 
the fees and charges was with Officers and not with Members?

Responses confirmed that the Council had taken some of the burden of the fee 
as the total amount was above £100. The Covid-19 allocation was to address 
crises and not to be used freely and Officers had the delegation to set fees and 
charges and the fee had been set under that delegation.

It was moved by Councillor Brook  and seconded by Councillor Callister, and it 
was, 

RESOLVED:- 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



1. To delegate authority to the Licensing Regulatory Committee responsibility 
for all matters in relation to pavement licences, not otherwise delegated to 
Officers, under the Planning and Business Act 2020;

2. To establish an internal review process where a licence had been refused 
or revoked or granted subject to conditions with which the applicant 
disagrees, giving the applicant the chance to make written and /or oral 
representations to a Sub-Committee of the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee; and

3. To delegate authority to the Public Protection Manager to determine 
applications for pavement licences; to include setting the duration of the 
licence and attach such conditions as they consider reasonably necessary 
and to take any necessary action in relation to the enforcement and 
revocation of the licence.

33 – Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2019/20

Councillor McLeavy stated that the report provided Members with the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee’s Annual report.

It was moved by Councillor McLeavy and seconded by Councillor Cassidy, and 
it was 

RESOLVED:- That the Annual Report from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be accepted.

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

34 – Planning

Questions to the Chair:

a) Referring to Minute No. 7 of the Planning Committee held on 23rd June, 
2020 (Land to rear of 12/14 Nelson Street, Dalton in Furness), Councillor 
Shirley questioned if the recent application could be amended to extend 
off street parking and mitigate against further traffic congestion?

b) Referring to Minute No. 15 of the Planning Committee held on 14th July, 
2020 (Proposed Housing Site, Crompton Drive, Dalton in Furness), 
Councillor Shirley questioned if figures on what the Council believed was 
affordable housing in the Borough could be included within the Council 
Plan?

Responses from the Chair:

a) The planning application had been agreed, however, the Chair agreed to 
discuss with the Planning Department and report back to Councillor 
Shirley.

b) When schemes were submitted by developers they included plans for 
affordable housing.  The Chair agreed to discuss further with the 
Planning Department and report back to Councillor Shirley.

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



It was moved by Councillor M. A. Thomson, and

RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Planning Committee held 
on 23rd June and 14th July, 2020 be received.

35 – Licensing Regulatory

Questions to the Chair:

a) Referring to Minute No. 5 of the Licensing Regulatory Committee held on 
23rd July, 2020 (Business and Planning Act 2020 - Pavement Licences),  
Councillor Shirley questioned if the Council would continue to work with 
Barrow Bid and businesses to ensure clarity was provided regarding what 
was meant by temporary furniture? 

Responses from the Chair:

a) The Council would continue to work with local businesses to offer the 
best possible support.  The furniture was temporary and would be 
required to be moved off the pavement when not trading.

It was moved by Councillor Callister, and 

RESOLVED:- (i) To note that the meeting to be held on 25th June, 2020 had 
been cancelled; and

(ii) That the report of the meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Committee held 
on 23rd July, 2020 be received.

36 – Licensing

The Mayor advised that the meetings of the Licensing Committee scheduled to 
take place on 25th June and 23rd July, 2020 had been cancelled.

37 – Executive

Councillor Brook advised that there were no recommendations referred to 
Council from the meeting held on 8th July.  

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts, and 

RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Executive Committee held 
on 8th July and the addendum of the Executive Committee meeting held on 27th 
July, 2020 be received and that each of the recommendations contained therein 
had been dealt with under Agenda Item Nos. 7, 8, 9 and 10 as outlined in 
Minute Nos. 29, 30, 31 and 32 above.

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



38 – Overview and Scrutiny

It was moved by Councillor McLeavy, and

RESOLVED:- That the report of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 9th July, 2020 be received and that the recommendation 
contained therein had been dealt with under Agenda Item No. 11 as outlined in 
Minute No. 33 above.

39 – Questions to the Leader of the Council

There had been no questions submitted to the Leader of the Council under 
notice as required by Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4.

Local Government Act 1972 – Excluded Item

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Burns to move 
into Part Two, and

RESOLVED:- That the item to be taken in Part Two of the Agenda be dealt with 
following the exclusion of the press and the public.

The meeting adjourned at 7.43 pm.

The meeting reconvened at 7.50 pm. following the exclusion of the press and 
the public.

40 – COVID-19 Financial Management

The Director of Resources reported that Life Leisure had asked to re-open the 
Centre; other providers in the Borough and nationally had re-opened their 
facilities.

In summary the report provided an update of the Park Leisure Centre 
management fee for the recovery period.

A motion was put forward by Councillor H Edwards and seconded by Councillor 
Hall that the matter be referred back to a Special Executive Committee for 
reconsideration.

A vote was taken, 5 for, 19 against and 2 abstained and the motion was 
therefore declared lost.

A substantive motion was put forward by Councillor Brook and seconded by 
Councillor M A Thomson to agree the recommendations.

A vote was taken, 19 for, 4 against and 3 abstained and it was

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



RESOLVED:-

1. To affirm support for the Park Leisure Centre and re-opening;

2. To agree that the Director of Resources negotiate and agree an August 
management fee whilst the examination of the proposal was concluded; 
and

3. To reaffirm that the Director of Resources and the Chief Executive in 
consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Executive Committee 
negotiate and agree a recovery management fee as detailed within the 
report.

The meeting closed at 8.18 pm.

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



PART ONE

Barrow Borough Council
Full Council 

29 September 2020
Exploration of Local Government Reform and Devolution 

Report from: Sam Plum, Chief Executive
Report Author: Debbie Storr, Head of Legal and Governance
Wards: All 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 In anticipation that Government may call for proposals for the reorganisation of local 

government that the Council works jointly with South Lakeland District and Lancaster 
City Councils to explore further evidence to substantiate a case for the area of the 
three districts to form a Unitary Authority. 

1.2 The development of a high level case would be an initial step, enabling the three 
Councils to explore and describe the benefits of a cross county boundary proposal, 
based squarely on the functioning economic geography and health footprint of the 
Morecambe Bay area.  

1.3 It will enable the councils to present an option to Government demonstrating how a 
unitary council will be an effective driver of economic, social and environmental 
benefits for the area’s residents, businesses and visitors, realise the strategic 
potential of the area and enable transformation of public services.  

2.0 Recommendations
2.1 It is recommended that Council:-

(1)  Note the current position with devolution and local government reform;
(2)  Authorise the Leader and Chief Executive to work with South Lakeland 

District Council and Lancaster City Council to explore Local 
Government Reform and devolution, including the development of a 
high level case for a new unitary council for the area comprising the 
three districts;

(3) Note that the high level case will be brought back to Executive 
Committee and Council for agreement prior to submission to the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government; and

(4) Note that the Secretary of State may then invite the Council to put 
forward a formal proposal which will be subject to future Executive 
Committee and Council agreement

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



3.0 Background and Proposals
3.1 Movement towards local government reform and in particular new models of devolved 

government has gathered pace, particularly in Cumbria and Lancashire over the last 
few months.  Meetings between Ministers and the local authorities’ Leaders lead to 
expectation that the Government’s intentions will be made clearer in a white paper on 
recovery and devolved Government which is anticipated in the Autumn. Initial 
indications are that the Government will expect reorganisation via unitary authorities. 
Discussions also indicate that the Government, where it believes there is local 
agreement, may invite early expressions of interest for local government 
reorganisation (LGR) ahead of the white paper’s publication.

3.2 This has given rise to wider and more pressing discussions between authorities as to 
their view on LGR including how they may respond to Government.

3.3 A key issue for the Council is that whilst in some senses this may seem like early days 
in the debate, it is becoming increasingly apparent that impetus for change is picking 
up and may move rapidly, as witnessed by the recent decision of Cumbria County 
Council to submit a proposal to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government for a new, single unitary council for Cumbria. Similar discussion is taking 
place in Lancashire.  As a consequence, it is important that the Council is able to 
respond quickly and in an informed manner, rather than having change imposed upon 
it. 

3.4 LGR is involved and complex, requiring significant time and resource which risks 
drawing council focus from existing local priorities and recovery in light of COVID19. 
However strong the arguments may be for maintaining the status quo, if Government 
proceed with a call for LGR, there is risk that the status quo will not be allowed to 
remain. In this scenario the development of a well thought through option will be critical 
to maintaining well focussed strategic direction and structures that continue to deliver 
effective services for residents, businesses and visitors.

3.5 Drawing on the Council’s experience of working collaboratively across the Morecambe 
Bay area, the three councils share a functioning economic geography, a common 
health services footprint and a strong sense of community identity.  If Government is 
to bring forward LGR it is appropriate that consideration is made of an option for a 
unitary council for the Bay area, so protecting and enhancing the option in any 
forthcoming assessment.  Proper consideration of the option will mitigate risk to the 
wellbeing of the Bay area and its potential contribution to the NW and UK economy 
through other proposals which may be sub optimal options for LGR.

3.6 In responding to any Government call for expressions of interest, the purpose of a high 
level case is to present the option and potential benefits of a Bay unitary council.  It 
would represent a first stage.  If Government indicated that the proposal be further 
developed, then the preparation of a detailed business plan would follow.

The opportunity to develop a Bay proposal 
3.7 Developing a Bay proposal would build on the history of collaborative working 

between the three councils. More recently, this is rooted in the findings of a 2016 
economic study which confirmed the region as a functioning economic area with a 
combined Gross Value Added comparable to other major North West economic 
centres, for example Warrington.  In 2017, the councils approved a joint statement of 
intent and in 2019; the three Councils launched a prospectus for driving growth 
through an event attended by a wide range of businesses, agencies, authorities and 
media from across the region. The prospectus and approach to collaborative working 
was well received. In June 2020, the Councils established a formal Joint Committee 
to act as a strategic forum for addressing sustainable economic prosperity, the 
climate emergency and reducing inequality across the Bay area.

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



3.8 In 2020, the Leaders of the three Councils were joint signatories to a letter to MHCLG 
requesting consideration be made of an option for a Bay unitary council solution as a 
possible option if the Government decided to require our Region to pursue the unitary 
route.

3.9 In developing a high level case, it is expected that it will fundamentally recognise and 
present the Bay area as having significant potential for economic growth within a 
highly valued environment with opportunity to improve and maximise the wellbeing of 
residents. The Bay has a coherent economy and sense of community.  Strategies 
and services need to operate at scale with a delivery strategy which mobilises the 
resources of the whole place whilst being locally connected. The high level case is 
expected to describe why it is a preferable option to the Cumbria County Council 
proposal.

3.10 The focus achievable through unitary local government at the scale of the Bay will 
realise this potential better than the area being served at the geographic periphery of 
two unitary solutions for Cumbria and Lancashire.   Given the common footprint with 
the health services there would be particularly strong opportunity for public service 
reform.  

3.11 It is expected that the case would demonstrate the opportunity for a Bay unitary 
council to work at greater strategic scale than other unitary options (within Cumbria) 
with the potential of future Combined Authority arrangements with councils to the 
north and south, enabling a fuller devolution of resources and powers from 
Government.  Further, the case may enable stronger options for unitary councils to 
the north and south, better addressing the size of populations and scale of 
geographies.  

3.12 The development of a high level case has the  opportunity to demonstrate the 
potential for the following benefits when compared to other unitary options within 
Cumbria. 

 Better outcomes for residents

 Exceptional environmental outcomes

 Improved democratic accountability

 Jobs and economic growth

 Reducing health inequalities

 Efficiencies enabling reinvestment in services

 A solution that works for all of Cumbria and Lancashire
3.13 The case would be informed by our existing work to develop a Growth Deal proposal. 

It would demonstrate a strengthening of the strategic scope and focus to deliver on 
the eight themes we identify as having regional and national significance:

 Renewables and clean growth

 Agri, tech and innovation

 Digital connectivity

 Arts and culture

 Healthy communities

 Resilient towns

 Our ports

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



 Attracting talent
3.14 It is expected that a high level case will demonstrate how it meets the likely 

requirements of Government for proposals:

 which are likely to  deliver optimal services compared to other unitary options 
within Cumbria and which provide strong strategic and local leadership and 
which are sustainable structures;

 which command a good deal of local support as assessed in the round overall 
across the whole area of the proposal; and

 where the area of each unitary authority is a credible geography consisting of 
one or more existing local government areas and having a substantial 
population that, at a minimum, is substantially in excess of 300,000.

3.15 The development of a high level case would be a first stage, intended to secure the 
interest of Government to invite a detailed proposal in accordance with the statutory 
guidance.

3.16 Proceeding with the development of a high level case will necessitate strong 
communications to ensure there is awareness amongst communities, stakeholders 
and key organisations, including Parish and Town Councils. This will ensure that 
there is a wide understanding of the nature of the work being undertaken at this 
stage and that which would follow if the councils proceeded to a second stage of 
developing a formal proposal.  Communications will enable the councils to assess 
the wider sense of understanding and support for a Bay option. 

Other proposals 
3.17 With the exception of the Cumbria County Council proposal, proposals from other 

councils have not yet been described or published.  As an alternative to the single 
unitary proposal of Cumbria County Council, it is likely that options will come forward 
which propose unitary councils based on combinations of geographic footprints of the 
existing district councils.   As and when proposals come forward, the Council will 
need to appraise and respond to them.

3.18 The high level case is expected to describe why it is a preferable option to the 
Cumbria County Council proposal.  At this stage it is suggested that there is sufficient 
merit in a case for the Bay so as to warrant its further consideration by Government 
and by other councils and bodies.   

Next steps
3.19 This report has been produced in the absence of a defined timetable from 

Government. However work would proceed to develop the high level case so that the 
councils are in a position to respond should an invitation be received.  The high level 
case will be considered by Executive Committee and Council prior to submission to 
MHCLG.

3.20 If an option proceeds to Government and indication is given that it be developed 
further, then the councils would consider the requirements of the next stage of 
preparation of a detailed business case.  The preparation of a detailed business case 
would need to address the specific requirements of legislation and guidance under 
which LGR would be enacted.

4.0 Consultation
4.1 This proposal is developed following discussions between the Leaders and Chief 

Executives. Each council is considering a similar report at meetings in late 
September and early October.

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



4.2 Subject to the work proceeding there will be a joint communications plan to ensure 
there is awareness amongst communities, stakeholders, key organisations. This will 
enable the councils to assess the wider sense of understanding and support for a 
Bay option.   

5.0 Alternative Options
5.1 There is an option not to explore the development of a high level case. This may 

result in the Council not being in a position to respond in an informed and timely 
manner to a Government call for proposals, proposals developed by others would be 
considered and the opportunity for a proposal based on the footprint of the three 
councils would be lost.  This option is not recommended.

5.2 There is an option for the Council to await the publication of the White Paper prior to 
determining its course of action.   This option would not prepare the Council in the 
event the Government invites expressions of interest ahead of the publication of the 
White Paper.  This option is not recommended.

5.3 As work proceeds it will be necessary to develop and maintain awareness of other 
proposals which may be proposed by other councils and have a bearing on the 
District.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities
6.1 Exploring the case for devolution will consider the benefits a change to local 

government could deliver. Supporting our economy to thrive and benefit all our 
residents. It supports the outcome that our Borough will have a strategic role within 
Cumbria and as part of the Lancaster and South Cumbria City Region. A unitary 
authority will support improving all outcomes for the Borough.

7.0 Implications
Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1.1 In its own right this report does not have any direct financial implications.  
7.1.2 Examination of the impact of any potential reorganisation on the Council’s finances 

would be included in the preparation of a formal proposal should one be invited.  It is 
expected that any reorganisation would result in additional one-off costs to implement 
the changes and then recurring variations in costs and income following the change.  
How these changes will balance out will depend on the individual circumstances of 
each local authority and the options adopted. Particular issues to be considered 
include existing base budgets, the relative income base of each authority, existing 
levels of council tax and government grants, capital expenditure, assets owned, 
levels of borrowing, pensions, potential redundancy costs, relative salary and staffing 
levels, potential costs of aligning IT systems and the speed and ability to realign 
service delivery to realise efficiency savings while providing strong strategic and local 
leadership.

Legal
7.2.0 There are legislative powers available to enable local government reorganisation.  

Proposals for a unitary authority may be submitted under Part I of the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. Section 2 of the 2007 Act 
explains the process. Also The Cities and Local Government Devolution Act 2016 
Section 15(1) provides a Legislative framework that can be deployed to implement a 
wide range of Local Government reforms, however at this stage this report seeks 
approval to develop a ‘high level case’ only which will then be subject to approval by 
Executive Committee and Council prior to submission to the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government.

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



Equality and Diversity
7.3.0 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No     
7.3.1 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 

There are no identified equality and diversity issues in considering proposals in this 
report. Implementation of any proposal will consider these issues.

. 
Risk

Risk Consequence Controls required

Work proceeds ahead of the 
detail of Government’s white 
paper 

Resultant work may not 
meet the intentions of 
Government

Keep progress informed 
by emergent intelligence / 
indications of the 
Government’s intent

Proposal does not meet the 
criteria set by Government for 
LGR proposals

The proposal could be 
dismissed by Government 
or challenged by other 
bodies 

Ensure compliance with 
criteria and where there 
may be doubt, present 
compelling case for 
consideration as exception

Proposal does not gain support 
of local bodies and other public 
sector organisations

The proposal could be 
dismissed by Government

Position the proposal with 
local communities, bodies 
and organisations and 
gather expressed support
Undertake 
communications works 
which demonstrate the 
benefits of the proposal

LGR proves a distraction of 
effort

Effort may be redirected 
from other priority work, 
and in the context of 
COVID 19 recovery

Ensure LGR work is 
effectively prioritised 
alongside other priority 
work.  

Contact Officers
Sam Plum, Chief Executive
Appendices Attached to this Report

Appendix No. Name of Appendix
None

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document Where it is available
None

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Full Council
29 September 2020

Member Role Profiles

 
Report from:  Monitoring Officer
Report Author: Debbie Storr
Wards:  N/A

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 This report brings forward work undertaken around Member role profiles. It 

also has regard to the recommendations arising from the LGA governance 
review.

1.2 The report seeks approval for the role profiles for Members and the role of the 
Lead Member for inclusion in the Council’s Constitution.

2.0 Recommendations 
That Executive Committee recommend to full Council 
(1) That the role of Official Spokesperson be replaced by Lead Members 

as detailed within paragraph 3.2 of this report;

(2) That the Member role profiles as attached as Appendix 1 to this 
report be agreed for incorporation into the Council’s Constitution; 

(3) That Members on Outside Bodies, Chairs and Lead Members should 
be requested to provide an annual report to Council based on the 
template as attached at Appendix 2 on the work of the body and its 
contribution to the Borough and the wider area with implementation 
as detailed within the report; and

(4) That training for Chairs should be undertaken within 6 months of 
becoming a Chair.

Recommendations to Full Council:

(1) That full Council agree the above recommendations; and subject to 
approval of (1)

(2) That Council agree the Lead Members for the remainder of the 
2020/21 municipal year

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 It is good practice to have role descriptions for Councillors.  They assist in 

Members understanding of the roles, and are available for people who may 
wish to know more about the role of the Councillor, and for those that may be 
thinking of standing for election.  

3.2 Members have indicated through the governance review that they would 
welcome further development of the role of spokesperson and the LGA 
governance review recommended that the roles of spokesperson be reviewed 
and a role description developed that includes the key requirements that will 
be expected of Members who take on the role.  Subsequent feedback has 
proposed that they be renamed Lead Members for the relevant area.  The 
draft profiles include a suggested role profile for a Lead Member.  A review of 
the relevant areas has been undertaken linked to the new Council Plan with 
proposals for the following Lead Members to replace existing spokesperson 
roles.

People 
1. Community - Thriving communities, community development, voluntary 

sector;
2. Health and Wellbeing - Health and well being across whole 

community and supporting older adults; and
3. Children, young people and families  -‘Think Family’, supporting children 

and young people, schools and colleges.

 Place
4. Climate Emergency - Lead the Councils response to climate emergency;
5. Cleaner and greener neighbourhoods - Cleaner streets, parks, 

environment;
6. Heritage and Wildlife - Heritage and wildlife, site and habitat protection, 

conservation, Beautiful Places;
7. Housing Strategy and Homelessness (excluding Housing Stock); and
8. Arts,Culture and Leisure – Arts, Culture, Forum, Dock Museum and 

Leisure Centre.

 Prosperity
 9. Economic development and strategic partnerships - Wider economic 

issues, LEP, Lancaster South Lakes, major projects, COVID recovery.

 Cross cutting
10 Equality, Diversity and Inclusion - Inclusive and diverse workplace, trained 

council and workforce, fair and accessible services for all.

3.3 The Member Training Working Group has considered the draft role profiles as 
attached at Appendix 1 to this report, and following their feedback they are 
being recommended to Council for approval for incorporation into the 
Council’s Constitution. Under the Chair’s profiles, the Chair of the Executive 
Committee is also identified as Finance spokesperson for the Council.

Page 28

Agenda Item 8



3.4 The Member Training Working Group also recommended that within 6 months 
of being appointed Chair that a Member should attend Chairs Training and 
attend all other relevant training including all required training to ensure 
sufficient knowledge of the subject area for which they are Chair in order to 
effectively run the Committee or Council Meeting and that if they failed to 
attend such training this may result in the Member being removed as Chair.

3.5 Consideration has also been given as to whether the Council should seek 
annual reports from Members appointed to Outside Bodies as well as from 
Chairs and Lead Members at its AGM.  Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
have been requested to consider a review and rationalisation of Outside 
Bodies.

3.6 The Member Training Working Group have developed a template for 
feedback which is attached as Appendix 2, and Council is recommended to 
ask Members to provide an annual report if appointed to Outside Bodies or on 
their work as Lead Members. 

3.7 The Member Training Group have recommended that if adopted this be 
brought in in two phases, with the Leader, Deputy Leader, Chairs of 
Committees and Lead Members completing it in the first phase and for other 
Members on Outside Bodies being included in phase 2 for the 2021/22 
municipal year.

3.8 Members are asked to approve the recommendations and if the Lead Member 
areas are agreed for Council to confirm the Lead Members for the remainder 
of the municipal year.

4.0 Consultation 
The Member Training Working Group has been consulted on the draft role 
profiles which are being recommended to Council. 

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 Whilst the Council could resolve not to agree the recommendations put 

forward, to have role profiles is good practice and adds transparency to the 
work of Members, and for those wishing to stand for election.

5.2 The Council could decide not to seek annual reports.  The recommendations 
are put forward to ensure that there is value in attendance at Outside Bodies, 
and that the work of those Bodies/Lead Members is more widely understood.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 Good governance underpins the delivery of the Council Plan and its 

objectives.
7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no finance, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  Members will be supported in providing annual reports within existing 
resources.

7.1.2 Officers supporting Lead Members will do so within existing resources.

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



Legal 
7.1.3 There are no legal implications arising from this report. Good governance 

underpins the working of the Council.  Clear role descriptions provide clarity 
in terms of roles of Members and assist those undertaking the role.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – the report has no 

direct Equality and Diversity implications.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Members or those considering 
standing for election are 
unclear in terms of the role 
requirements.

Inconsistency and lack 
of clarity around roles.

Clear role descriptions 
which are kept under 
review.

Contact Officers 
Debbie Storr, dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Draft Member Role Profiles
2 Template for feedback on outside bodies/lead member roles

Background Documents Available

Part 7 – Constitution – Official 
Spokespersons

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/the-
council/barrow-council/council-constitution/

Page 30

Agenda Item 8

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/the-council/barrow-council/council-constitution/
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/the-council/barrow-council/council-constitution/


MEMBER ROLE PROFILES 

Members are elected by the public to represent them both inside the Council and 
outside the Council in the community.  They are accountable to their communities.  
Communities should be able to judge their performance.
The following describes the role of a Member.  It is reasonable to expect that, while a 
Member may specialise in certain aspects of the role and, indeed, this is something 
that should be encouraged, all Members will perform a broad spectrum of duties.  A 
high performing Member would undertake the majority of, if not all, the duties listed 
below. 
Political Groups play a crucial role in the selection of candidates and in the 
organisation of Members.  Political Groups should monitor the performance of all 
their Members. 

Purpose of the Role 

1. To participate constructively in the good governance of the Borough;  
2. To develop and maintain a working knowledge of the Council's services, 

management arrangements, powers/duties, and constraints; 
3. To contribute actively to the formation and scrutiny of the Council's policies, 

budget, strategies and service delivery;
4. To represent effectively as a community leader the interests of the Member’s 

Ward and deal with constituents' enquiries and representations acting as a 
community advocate and champion causes for constituents, both within and 
outside the Council, with particular emphasis on those that will improve the 
quality of life of the community; 

5. To champion causes which best relate to the interests and sustainability of the 
community and campaign for improvement of the quality of life in the 
community in terms of equity, economy and the environment; deal with 
individual casework and act as an advocate for constituents; 

6. To represent the Council on any Outside Bodies to which the Member may be 
appointed, promoting and maintaining the highest standards of conduct and 
ethics;  

7. Balance different interests identified within the Ward and represent the Ward 
as a whole; and 

8. To engage in Member development to enhance corporate and personal 
effectiveness, including attend and participate in any training courses, 
workshops and other sessions either internally or externally provided, to 
enable you to fulfil your role as a Member, including sessions in support of 
digital and other developments within the Council, and any required training. 

Key Tasks 

1. To fulfil statutory and any additional locally determined requirements of an 
elected Member of the Council and the Council itself, developing and 
maintaining effective professional working relations with relevant Officers of 
the Council, in accordance with the Code of Conduct and Council Protocols, 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



and participation in those decisions and activities reserved for the full Council 
– e.g., setting budgets; 

2. To attend and participate effectively as a Member of any Committee or other 
body to which the Member is appointed including attendance at any related 
Member development sessions for the work of the committee: 
a) Appeals Sub-Committee for which selected; 
b) Chair any ad-hoc Committees, Panels or Boards, where appointed; 
c) Attend and participate in any Planning site visits, tender opening or 

other statutory or non-statutory visits or tasks, as required. 
3. To participate in the activities of any Outside Body to which the Member is 

appointed, providing two-way communication between the organisations and 
presenting annually a report on the work of the body and its contribution to the 
Borough and the wider area.  To develop and maintain a working knowledge 
of the Council's policies and practices in relation to that body and the 
community's needs, aspirations and functions; 

4. To participate, as appointed, in the area and service based consultative 
processes with the community and other organisations; contribute 
constructively to open government and democratic renewal through actively 
encouraging the community to participate in the government of the area; and, 
to this end, seek to involve the community in decisions that affect them by 
ensuring they have full information and then by helping them make their views 
known; 

5. To work collaboratively with other Members within the Ward to represent the 
community to the Council and vice-versa through all appropriate means 
representing the interests of your Ward, dealing with constituents' inquiries 
and representations and hold Ward surgeries on a regular basis, where 
appropriate.  You should be visible in and recognisable to your community; 
seek out membership or involvement in community based initiatives/groups in 
own Ward, and where necessary, provide guidance and leadership; 

6. To promote community cohesion and equality and diversity in decision 
making; and 

7. To ensure corporate responsibility for issues relating to the safeguarding of 
children and vulnerable adults, as well as personal responsibility to comply 
with all relevant safeguarding legislation, policies and action plans. 

Page 32

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



COUNCILLORS – SPECIAL ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL - ROLE PROFILE 

Purpose of the Role 

1. To provide visible leadership in relation to citizens, stakeholders and partners 
in the overall coordination of Council policies, strategies and service delivery; 

2. To contribute actively to the formulation and scrutiny of the Council's policies, 
budget, strategies and service delivery, including the digital and customer 
service developments; and

3. To lead or contribute towards the development of local, regional, national and 
international policy and strategic partnerships. 

Key Tasks 

1. In accordance with the Code of Conduct and Council Protocols, to provide 
visible leadership within the Council and to the Barrow Community, 
stakeholders and partners in the overall co-ordination and promotion of 
Council policies, strategies and service delivery and any related strategic 
plans to support the future development of the Council and it’s services; 

2. To represent the Council in the community and on strategic and regional 
partnerships and in discussions and negotiations with regional, national and 
international organisations and others, in relation to the pursuit of matters 
relevant to the district and Council functions and its community; 

3. To appoint a Deputy Leader;
4. To ensure the Council’s image is promoted to best advantage by maintaining 

and developing effective professional working relationships and establish 
mutual respect with all Members and Officers;   

5. To communicate vision and policy direction to the Chief Executive, and to 
meet regularly (with or without the leadership team) with the Chief Executive, 
Directors, and other relevant senior Officers to consider and recommend 
action within approved policies and strategies;

6. To ensure arrangements are in place to appraise the performance of the Chief 
Executive; 

7. To assist in the preparation of responses to Government etc., consultation 
documents;

8. To promote community cohesion and equality and diversity in matters relating 
to the role; 

9. To ensure corporate responsibility for issues relating to the safeguarding of 
children and vulnerable adults, as well as personal responsibility to comply 
with all relevant safeguarding legislation, policies and action plans; and 

10. Actively engage in all relevant and required training as agreed appropriate for 
the post. 

  

Page 33

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL - ROLE PROFILE 

Purpose of the Role 

1. To support the Leader of the Council and deputise in their absence. 

Key Tasks 

1. In accordance with the Code of Conduct and Council Protocols, to assist the 
Leader in the formal processes and matters of leadership of the Council.  
These will include developing overall strategy, budgets, policy arrangements 
and service reviews, and representing the Council in the community and in 
discussions with regional, national and international organisations; 

2. To promote the vision, values and strategic objectives of the Council as set 
out in the Council Plan and any related strategic plans to support the future 
development of the Council and its services and to champion them both within 
and outside the Council; and 

3. To ensure corporate responsibility for issues relating to the safeguarding of 
children and vulnerable adults, as well as personal responsibility to comply 
with all relevant safeguarding legislation, policies and action plans. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



CHAIR/MAYOR OF THE COUNCIL ROLE PROFILE 

Introduction 

The Chair of Council and in their absence, the Vice Chair, is the civic leader and first 
citizen of the community. 
The Chair of the Council is elected each year at the annual Council meeting.  They 
chair full Council meetings and represent the Council at civic functions in the Barrow 
area and in neighbouring areas.  They also attend local informal events at which the 
Council is asked to be present.  The Chair should not be confused with the Leader or 
Deputy Leader of the Council who provide political leadership for the Council. 
The Chair must be a serving Borough Councillor.  They must remain politically 
impartial.

Ceremonial duties 

The Chair’s ceremonial duties require that they must: 
1. Be politically impartial and uphold the democratic values of the Council; 
2. Support the objectives and services of the Borough Council; 
3. Represent the Council at civic and ceremonial events, acting on behalf of and 

supported by the whole Council in a non-partisan manner; 
4. Act as an ambassador for the Council; 
5. Act as the principal spokesperson of the Council on civic and ceremonial 

occasions; 
6. Provide community leadership and promote active citizenship, fostering 

community identify and pride and promoting public involvement in the 
Council’s activities; and 

7. Invite individuals and representatives of key organisations to suitable events. 

Key responsibilities 

The Chair’s key responsibilities require that they must: 
1. Preside over Full Council meetings, acting impartially and ensuring that 

business is carried out efficiently and effectively whilst protecting the rights of 
individual Members and the interests of the community; 

2. Uphold and promote the purposes of the Constitution and interpret the 
Constitution when necessary, working with Officers to keep the Constitution 
under review to ensure it is relevant to the Council’s needs; 

3. Promote public involvement in the Council’s activities and ensure that at 
Council meetings, matters of concern to local communities can be debated by 
their Borough Council Members; and

4. Promote and support good governance of the Council and its affairs. 

The Vice Chair acts on the Chair’s behalf when the Chair is unavailable.

Page 35

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



CHAIR OF COMMITTEE – GENERAL ROLE PROFILE 

Purpose of the Role 

1. To effectively chair meetings as appointed by the Council at the Annual 
General Meeting of Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council, including any 
working groups or external meetings for which the Council are proactive 
partners; and 

2. To chair and manage the business of the Committee, Sub-Committee or 
Housing forum (the Committee”) in line with its terms of reference.

Key Tasks 

1. Leading the Committee to enable it to fulfil its purpose, ensuring the 
Constitution and the rules of debate are followed effectively; 

2. To ensure an effective relationship between the Committee, Officers and 
members of the public / press who may attend for Part 1 items;  

3. Chair Committee meetings ensuring: 
• A balance is struck between time-keeping and space for discussions to 

ensure matters are dealt with in an orderly, efficient manner; 
• Business is dealt with impartiality and objectivity within the meeting and 

decision-making; 
• Decisions, actions and deliberations are accurately minuted; and 
• The implementation of decisions is clearly assigned and monitored. 

4. Demonstrate the following qualities and skills when acting in this capacity: 
• The ability to facilitate focussed and relevant discussions, ensuring that all 

Committee Members are able to contribute and that no Members are able 
to unduly dominate discussions at the expense of others; 

• Good communication and interpersonal skills; 
• Impartiality, fairness, tact and diplomacy;
• Ability to ensure decisions are taken and followed-up; 
• Possesses relevant knowledge of Committee protocol and the Council 

Constitution;  
• Has the relevant skills to run a meeting well including effective time 

keeping; and 
• A willingness to devote the necessary time and effort. 

5. The Chair will communicate with the Officers in the relevant department to 
discuss relevant matters which have come up in between meetings including 
holding a Chair's briefing to allow for a discussion with the Officers to raise 
any matters/concerns before the meeting begins, to allow the Chair to be 
aware of any difficulties with an item on the agenda, and can try to push 
discussion along or point Members in the right direction to come to a decision; 

Page 36

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



6. A Chair must within 6 months of being appointed, attend Chairs Training and 
attend all other relevant training including all required training to ensure 
sufficient knowledge of the subject area for which they are Chair in order to 
effectively run the Committee or Council Meeting.  Failure to attend such 
training may result in the Member being removed as Chair;

7. The Chair will act as spokesperson for the Committee/Sub-Committee, 
respond to questions to the Chair at full Council, and liaise with community 
groups, partners, outside bodies and the public on matters that fall within the 
remit of the Committee/Sub-Committee. 

8. The Executive Committee Chair will also act as the Finance spokesperson for 
the Council.

VICE CHAIR OF COMMITTEE - ROLE PROFILE 

Purpose of the Role 

1. In addition to deputising for the Chairs in the event of absence, they might be 
called on to undertake specific pieces of work on behalf of the Committee or the 
Council as a whole. 

Key Tasks 

1. Fulfil all the functions of the Committee Chair in the absence of the Chair; 
2. Advise, support and act as a ‘critical friend’ to the Committee Chair; 
3. Act as an active Member of the Committee; and 
4. Undertake individual pieces of work on behalf of the Committee and the 

Council as a whole (e.g. representing at events and meetings, taking part in 
ad-hoc working groups and taking forward specific tasks). 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CHAIR

The Chair of Scrutiny Committee should ensure that the scrutiny process is 
conducted robustly and with equity of treatment for the parties and interests involved 
– they should:

 Chair the meetings of the Scrutiny Committee, co-ordinate its activities and 
take a lead role in the work of the Committee;

 Lead the development of an annual work programme for the Committee;
 Contribute effectively to the scrutiny process by ensuring the questioning of 

the relevant Executive Committee Member/Officer on the development and 
performance of policy and strategies;

 Ensure that the Committee’s work is Member led;
 Lead on the selection of witnesses and in determining how evidence is to be 

provided in a scrutiny review;
 Work with Officers to commission research to deliver the Scrutiny 

Committee’s work programme;
 Liaise with Officers on the content of the agenda;
 Approve draft minutes before they are presented for formal acceptance;
 Develop a constructive relationship with the Directors/Heads of Service in the 

areas that the Committee scrutinises;
 Promote transparency and opportunities for public engagement in scrutiny; 

and
 Act as spokesperson for the Committee.

Page 38

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



ROLE OF LEAD MEMBERS

The Council has identified Lead Member roles for the undermentioned areas of business 
who will be appointed at the Annual Council Meeting every year.  These Members will act as 
advocate and spokesperson for the area of the Council’s business and activities.  The main 
responsibility is to encourage communication and positive action over the issue they 
represent.
Officer Support - The Lead member plays an important role in promoting their area of 
interest on behalf of the Council.  Each Lead Member will be advised by an appropriate 
Head of Service, who will meet with the relevant Lead Member on a regular basis to discuss 
action plans, current activities, national developments or any other matters relating to the 
interest.
Lead Member areas are aligned to the corporate plan priorities as follows:

People 

1. Community - Thriving communities, community development, voluntary sector;
2. Health and Wellbeing - Health and well being across whole community and supporting 

older adults; and
3. Children, young people and families  -‘Think Family’, supporting children and young 

people, schools and colleges.

 Place

4. Climate Emergency - Lead the Councils response to climate emergency;
5. Cleaner and greener neighbourhoods - Cleaner streets, parks, environment;
6. Heritage and Wildlife - Heritage and wildlife, site and habitat protection, conservation, 

Beautiful Places;
7. Housing Strategy and Homelessness (excluding Housing Stock); and
8. Arts, Culture and Leisure – Arts, Culture, Forum, Dock Museum and Leisure Centre.

 Prosperity

 9. Economic development and strategic partnerships - Wider economic issues, LEP, 
Lancaster South Lakes, major projects, COVID recovery.

 Cross cutting

10 Equality, Diversity and Inclusion - Inclusive and diverse workplace, trained council and 
workforce, fair and accessible services for all.

Lead Members should: 
1. Act reasonably in their role and recognise and work effectively within the political 

management and working arrangements adopted by the Council;
2. A Lead Member cannot make decisions (unless they have delegated authority) and 

must not commit the Council in any way or in a manner that could be interpreted as 
being contrary to established policy and practice;

3. Lead Members are to be consulted on any press release relevant to their particular 
area of interest.  A Lead Member may however only be a recognised media contact 
with the prior approval of the Leader;  

Page 39

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



4. Be consulted on matters relating to their interest area - Decision makers should take 
full account of any views offered by Lead Members prior to any decision taken on 
matters within their area of interest;

5. Be consulted on in the formulation of policy and be invited to contribute to any 
reviews or relevant work programmes that have a direct bearing on their role; and

6. Liaise with the lead Officer as necessary and go through agendas for external 
meetings or Outside Bodies prior to attendance at such meetings and seek the lead 
Officer’s guidance in responding to external enquiries or requests for information.

Each Lead Member with the assistance of the relevant Officer, will prepare an annual 
report for submission to Council setting out the actions taken during the course of the 
year.

Page 40

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL - MEMBER ANNUAL FEEDBACK 
The purpose of this feedback form is for Members in key roles and positions to summarise and feedback 
annually on their activities.  To be representative, accountable, informative and transparent to the 
Council as a whole. 

Note 1 – Keep it brief.  Aim for no more than 2 sides of A4 if possible.  Text boxes will expand.
Note 2 - More than one form can be completed, if required, if you have more than one role.
Councillor (Name)

Note 3 – Complete where applicable. 
ROLES List of Committees, Partnerships, Outside Bodies, Forums and 

Groups on which you represent the Council in this role
Leader 

of the Council
Deputy Leader            
of the Council

Committee  
Chair
Lead 

Member
Outside                   
Bodies 

Note 4 – Do not use any names of individuals or identifiers such as home addresses without written consent. 
1. What have been the key issues in your role this year?


2. How have those issues been dealt with?


3. What still needs to be done?


4. Are you aware of any issues coming within the next 6 months?  What are you 
concerned about?



5. Are there any matters to be taken forward? (e.g. to be raised at Leadership, 
Executive, Scrutiny or Council)



6. Celebrating Success – Are there any success stories you would like to share?


7. Any other comments?


Page 41

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



Date

Note 5 - If you require support to complete this form e.g. a phone or Zoom interview and/or scribe please contact 
xxxxx on Tel: xxxxxxx
Note 6 - Once completed, please return this form by email to xxxxx@barrowbc.gov.uk by (date)
Note 7 – Completed forms will be circulated with the Council AGM agenda.

Page 42

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2

mailto:xxxxx@barrowbc.gov.uk


Barrow Borough Council 
Full Council

29 September 2020
Amended Code of Conduct for Members

 
Report from:  Monitoring Officer

Report Author: Debbie Storr

Wards:  All

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 

1.1 To consider adoption of amendments to the Council’s Code of Conduct for 
Members.

 
2.0 Recommendation 

(1) It is recommended by the Executive Committee that Members adopt the 
amended Code of Conduct for Members as set out in Appendix 1;

(2)   Subject to the amendments being approved by Council that the 
Monitoring Officer make the amended Code of Conduct available to all 
town and parish councils in the Borough of Barrow, with a view to 
those councils adopting it for consistency; and

(3)   That training for Members on the Code of Conduct is required for all 
Members and co-opted Members of the Council as detailed within the 
report.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 On 30 July 2020 the Audit and Governance Committee considered the draft 

Model Code of Conduct which had been produced by the Local Government 
Association in response to recommendations arising from the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life following their report on Local Government Ethical 
Standards which was published in January 2019. The recommendations 
provided some best practice recommendations, one of which included a 
recommendation to the Local Government Association that they create an 
updated model code of conduct, in consultation with representative bodies of 
councillors and officers of all tiers of local government.

3.2 In noting the consultation, Members of the Committee asked that an earlier 
review be undertaken of the Council’s code with regards in particular to bullying 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



and social media provisions with a report for consideration by Members at the 
earliest opportunity.

3.3 The Council’s existing Member Code was adopted in 2012 following 
collaborative working across Cumbria following introduction of the Localism Act 
2011 and has been reviewed periodically through the Cumbria Monitoring Officer 
Group. 

3.4 Under the Localism Act 2011 the Council must adopt a code dealing with the 
conduct that is expected of members and co-opted members of the authority 
when they are acting in that capacity. The council may revise its existing code or 
adopt a code to replace its existing code.

3.5 Some of the recommendations from the Committee of Standards in Public Life 
recommend changes to Government which will require legislative change to 
introduce them.  At the date of this report no legislative changes have been 
introduced. 

3.6 The Committee on Standards in Public Life is an advisory body sponsored by the 
Cabinet Office and examines concerns about standards of conduct by holders of 
public office, and makes recommendations as to changes in present 
arrangements which might be required to ensure the highest standards of probity 
in public life.

3.7 The Committee for Standards in Public Life in their report also identified some 
best practice recommendations which represent a benchmark for ethical practice 
and which they expect any local authority should implement. Feedback on the 
best practice recommendations is being sought in the Autumn on progress on 
these and a further report will be taken to the Audit and Governance Committee 
to review them.  

3.8 The principal proposed amendments to the Code of Conduct at this stage add:
(i) an obligation not to bully or harass any person;
(ii) definitions of ‘bullying’ and ‘harassment’; and
(iii) examples of behaviour amounting to bullying or harassment
(iv) requirement to comply with any protocol which the Council seeks to 

regulate conduct through 
(v) requirement to co-operate with any standards investigation and prohibiting 

trivial or malicious allegations against another councillor.

3.9 Social Media was also flagged as an area where more guidance was needed.  
The Council has a Social Media Policy which all members should be aware of.
Guidance around the code and social media is being reviewed and will be 
presented to the Audit and Governance Committee for feedback and 
endorsement when the amendments to the Code have been determined 
following which it is proposed that training will be provided to all Members. 

Page 44

Agenda Item 9



3.10 The Member Training Working Group recommend that training on the Code of 
Conduct for Members should be required on induction, following any revisions to 
the code, and offered after ordinary elections with a report to Audit and 
Governance Committee on attendance at such training.

3.11. The Code of Conduct incorporating all the above amendments is set out in 
Appendix 1, with the main amendments shown in red. In addition the Nolan 
Principles have been reviewed to ensure the up to date definitions.

3.12 Though not legally required to do so, parish and town councils within the 
borough have customarily adopted the code of conduct of their ‘principal 
authority’.  This achieves consistency across the borough and enables members 
who are town/parish and district councillors to work to a common code.

3.13 It is therefore proposed that if the revised code is approved by the Council  the 
Monitoring Officer will make the amended code available to local councils across 
the borough with a view to them adopting it.

3.14 Executive Committee considered the revised draft at its meeting on 16 
September and  have made the recommendations to full Council.  Members are 
asked to consider the report and attachments.

4.0 Consultation 
The Member Training Working Group has been consulted through this process. 
All Members have been consulted on the revised draft version. The Independent 
Person has also had opportunity to comment.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 An alternative option would be to defer consideration of any amendments to the 

Code until the Model Code has been issued by the Local Government 
Association.    The Committee for Standards in Public Life were keen to ensure 
that an updated model was available to enhance consistency and quality of local 
codes.  At the date of writing this report, a draft has been consulted upon but has 
not yet been finalised.

5.2 To maintain the current code and work with Cumbrian Authorities on a revision of 
the code which could apply across all three tiers of local government.  This would 
be done following the Model Code of Conduct being finalised.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 Good governance underpins the Council Plan priorities and supports its 

objectives.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 

Page 45

Agenda Item 9



7.1.1 Adopting the amendments set out will have no financial implications outside 
existing budgets and any changes to the code will require training of Members 
which would be considered within existing resources.  

Legal 
7.1.2 The recommendations are consistent with the Council’s obligations under the 

statutory framework for local government and ethical standards: Part 1, Chapter 
7 of the Localism Act 2011.  Under section 28(13) of the Act, the function of 
revising the Council’s Code of Conduct is reserved to the full Council.

Equality and Diversity 
7.3 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No -  the code incorporates 

equality provisions

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Adoption of a revised code 
may raise inconsistency with 
other authorities

Inconsistency in 
approach

Ensure training to raise 
awareness among 
members, in particular 
dual hatted members

Contact Officers 
dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this Report

Appendix No. Name of Appendix
1 Draft revised Member Code of Conduct

Background documents available

1. Local Government Ethical 
Standards – a Review by the 
Committee on standards in Public 
Life

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-
government-ethical-standards-report

2. Local Government Association – 
Consultation draft Model Code of 
Conduct

https://www.local.gov.uk/local-government-
association-model-member-code-conduct-
consultation

3. Barrow Borough Council existing 
Member Code of Conduct

www.barrowbc.gov.uk

Page 46

Agenda Item 9

mailto:dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-government-association-model-member-code-conduct-consultation
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-government-association-model-member-code-conduct-consultation
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-government-association-model-member-code-conduct-consultation
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


 

Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised draft – working document 31.07.2020          Page 1 

 

 

 

Members’ Code of Conduct 

for Members and Co-opted  

Members of the Authority 

  

  

Page 47

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised draft – working document 31.07.2020          Page 2 

 

 

Barrow-in Furness Borough Council (“The Council”) has adopted the following code 

which has effect from [DATE]  and sets out  the conduct that is expected of elected 

members and co-opted members of the Council  (“Members”) when they are acting 

in that capacity as required by section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”). 

 

The Council has a statutory duty under the Act to promote and maintain high 

standards of conduct by Members and the Code sets out the standards that the 

Council expects Members to observe. 

 

The Code is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all the obligations that are 

placed on Members.  It is the responsibility of individual Members to comply with the 

provisions of the Code as well as such other legal obligations as may apply to them 

from time to time. Failure to do so may result in a sanction being applied by the 

Council.  Failure to take appropriate action in respect of a Disclosable Pecuniary 

Interest may result in a criminal conviction and a fine of up to £5,000 and/or 

disqualification from office for a period of up to 5 years.   

 
The Code is intended to be consistent with Nolan’s Seven Principles of Public Life 

as attached as Annex 1 to this code and should be read in the light of those 

principles, namely that Council Members will act with selflessness, integrity, 

objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership.   

 

Part 1 - GENERAL CONDUCT 

 

When acting in your capacity as a Member:- 

 

(1) You must treat others with respect, including members of the public, 

council employees and employees or representatives of partner 

organisations; and other elected members; 

 

(2) You should promote equality by not discriminating unlawfully against 

any person, and by treating people with respect, regardless of their sex, 

race, age, religion or belief, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 

maternity, marriage and civil partnerships, sexual orientation or 

disability.  

 

(3) You should respect the impartiality and integrity of the authority’s 

statutory officers and its other employees and should consider any 

advice given by the Monitoring Officer or Responsible Finance officer 

when taking decisions 

 

(4) You must not bully or harass any person, including any Council Officer, 

other elected members and members of the public, and you must not 

intimidate or improperly influence any person who is involved in any 

complaint about any alleged breach of this code of conduct. 

Page 48

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised draft – working document 31.07.2020          Page 3 

 

 

Note:  

Bullying may be characterised as:  

 offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour; or  

 an abuse or misuse of power in a way that intends to undermine, 

humiliate, criticise unfairly or injure someone.  

 

Harassment may be characterised as unwanted conduct which has the 

purpose or effect of violating an individual's dignity or creating an 

intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive environment for 

an individual.  

 

Bullying and/or harassment may take many forms and may relate to a 

variety of issues. For example, bullying and harassment may relate to: 

  

 age  

 disability  

 gender reassignment  

 marriage and civil partnerships 

 pregnancy and maternity 

 race  

 religion or belief 

 sex  

 sexual orientation 

 

This list is not exhaustive and any form of bullying or harassment is 

prohibited by the Code. 

 

(5) You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly 

confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain 

financial or other material benefits for yourself, your family, a friend, a 

close associate, an employer or a business carried on by you. 

 

(6) You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to 

outside individuals or organisations that may influence you in the 

performance of your official duties.  

 

(7) You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be 

regarded as bringing the Council, or your office as a member of the 

Council, into disrepute.  

 

(8) When carrying out public duties you must make all choices, such as 

making public appointments, awarding contracts or recommending 

individuals for reward or benefit on merit. 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised draft – working document 31.07.2020          Page 4 

 

(9) You must be as open as possible about your decisions and actions and 

the decisions and actions of your authority and should be prepared to 

give reasons for those decisions and actions. 

 

(10) You must comply with any Protocol adopted by the Council which 

seeks to regulate the conduct of its elected members or co-opted 

members and which the Council has specifically declared should fall 

within the provisions of this code of conduct and which is listed in 

Annex 3 to this Code.  

 

(11) You must not disclose any information given to you or acquired by you 

as a Member in breach of any confidence. 

 

(12) You must declare any private interests, both disclosable pecuniary 

interests and any other registrable interests, that relate to your public 

duties and must take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that 

protects the public interest, including registering and declaring interests 

in a manner which conforms with the procedures set out below. 

 

(13) You must ensure, when using or authorising the use by others of the 

resources of your Council, that such resources are not used improperly 

for political purposes (including party political purposes) and you must 

have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made 

under the Local Government Act 1986. 

 

(13) You are accountable for your decisions to the public and must co-

operate fully with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office 

including fully co-operating with any formal standards investigation or 

process. 

 

(14) Councillors must not misuse the standards process by, for example, 

making trivial or malicious allegations against another councillor. 

 

(15) You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving 

in your office. 

  

Page 50

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised draft – working document 31.07.2020          Page 5 

 

Part 2 - REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 

Registering and declaring disclosable pecuniary and other registrable interests: 

 

(1) You must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted member, 

notify your Council’s Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest 

as defined by regulations made by the Secretary of State, where the 

pecuniary interest is yours, your spouse’s or civil partner’s, or is the pecuniary 

interest of somebody with whom you are living with as a husband or wife, or 

as if you were civil partners. These interests and those at (2) below are 

shown at Annex 2 to this code. 

 

(2) In addition, you must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted 
member, notify your Council’s Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary 
or non-pecuniary interest which your Council has decided should be included 
in the register.  

 

(3) If an interest has not been entered onto the Council’s register, then the 

member must disclose the interest to any meeting of the Council at which 

they are present, where they have a disclosable interest in any matter being 

considered and where the matter is not a ‘sensitive interest' as described by 

the Localism Act 2011. If the interest being declared is ‘sensitive’ you only 

have to disclose the fact that you have an interest but do not need to disclose 

the nature of the interest. 

 

(4) Following any disclosure of an interest not on the Council’s register or the 

subject of pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the 

interest within 28 days beginning with the date of disclosure. 

 

(5) Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any 

discussion of, vote on, or discharge any function related to any matter in 

which you have a pecuniary interest as defined by regulations made by the 

Secretary of State.  Additionally, you must observe the restrictions your 

Council places on your involvement in matters where you have a pecuniary or 

non-pecuniary interest as defined by your Council. 

 

 

  

Page 51

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised draft – working document 31.07.2020          Page 6 

 

Annex 1 

SEVEN GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF CONDUCT 

 

The principles of public life apply to anyone who works as a public office-holder. 

This includes all those who are elected or appointed to public office, nationally and 

locally, and all people appointed to work in the civil service, local government, the 

police, courts and probation services, NDPBs, and in the health, education, social 

and care services. All public office-holders are both servants of the public and 

stewards of public resources. The principles also have application to all those in 

other sectors delivering public services 

 

Selflessness 
 
1. Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.  
 
Integrity 
 

2. Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to 
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their 
work. They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other 
material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must 
declare and resolve any interests and relationships. 

 
Objectivity 
 
3.  Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on 

merit, using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 
 
Accountability 
 
4. Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and 

actions and must submit themselves to the  scrutiny necessary to ensure this.  
 
Openness 
 
5. Holders of public office should act and taken decisions in an open and 

transparent manner.  Information should not be withheld from the public unless 
there are clear and lawful reasons for so doing.  

 
Honesty 
 
6.  Holders of public office should be truthful 
 
Leadership 
 
7. Holders of public office should exhibit  these principles in their own behaviour.  

They should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing 
to challenge poor behaviour whenever it occurs.  

Page 52

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised draft – working document 31.07.2020          Page 7 

 

 

|Annex 2 

PECUNIARY AND OTHER REGISTRABLE INTERESTS 
 
DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (as defined by regulations) 
 
1. Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 

profit or gain.  
 
2. Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 

from the relevant authority) made or provided within the relevant period in 
respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or 
towards the election expenses of M. (This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.  

 
3. Details of any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body 

in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant 
authority –  

 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
(b) which has not been fully discharged.  
 

4. Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant 
authority.   

 
5. Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area 

of the relevant authority for a month or longer.  
 
6. Details of any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge) –  
 

(a) The landlord is the relevant authority; and 
(b) The tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial 

interest. 
 
7. Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where 
 

(a) That body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the relevant authority; and 

 
(b) Either –  
 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class.   

Page 53

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised draft – working document 31.07.2020          Page 8 

 

  
OTHER REGISTRABLE INTERESTS 
 
These interests are what the Council has determined should be entered into the 
authority’s register of interests 
 
8.  Details of any bodies of which I am a member, or in a position of general 

control or management, and to which I am appointed or nominated to by the 
District Council.    

 
9. Details of any bodies of which I am a member, or in a position of general 

control or management, and which:- 
 

(a) Exercises function of a public nature; 
 
(b) Is directed towards charitable purposes; or 
 
(c) Is a body which includes as one of its principal purposes influencing 

public opinion or policy (this includes political parties or trade unions).  
 

10. Details of any persons from whom I have received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £50. (You must register any gifts or hospitality 
worth £50 or over that you receive personally in connection with your official 
duties).  

 
 

Annex 3  

Associated Protocols 

The Council has adopted the following Protocols which are intended to regulate the 

conduct of its elected members or co-opted members and which the Council has 

specifically declared should all within the provisions of this code of conduct pursuant 

to paragraph 10 of the code: 

Licensing Code of Conduct for Elected Members 

Social Media Policy  

Page 54

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Page 1 of 4

PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Full Council  
29 September 2020

Appointment of Independent Person

 
Report from:  Debbie Storr, Head of Legal and Governance 

(Monitoring Officer)

Report Author: Jane Holden, Principal Legal Officer 

(Deputy Monitoring Officer)

Wards:  All

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 The Localism Act 2011 created a new category of Independent Person who the 

Monitoring Officer must consult at various stages of the process when dealing 
with allegations of misconduct by district or parish councillors.

1.2 This report asks Council to consider extending the appointment of an 
Independent Person for code of conduct matters and matters relating to Officer 
Employment Procedural Rules.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that Council extends the appointment of Steven Murray, 

as Independent Person for a period up to 1 October 2021 whilst a 
recruitment exercise is undertaken. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The Localism Act 2011 created a new category of independent person who the 

Monitoring Officer must consult at various stages of the process when dealing 
with allegations of misconduct by district or parish councillors.

3.2 Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, the Authority is required to 
appoint at least one Independent Person to assist the Authority in promoting and 
maintaining high standards of conduct amongst all its members, whose views 
must be sought, and taken into account, before any decision on an allegation 
which has been investigated is taken.

Page 55

Agenda Item 10



Page 2 of 4

3.3 Appointments are made following an advertisement, application and interview 
process and with a positive vote by a majority of councillors as required by the 
Localism Act. 

3.4 In May 2015 the Local Authorities (Standing Orders)(England)(Amendment) 
Regulations were passed.  These provide that where a decision to dismiss any 
statutory officer is to be undertaken by the Council, prior to making such a 
decision, the Council must invite at least two Independent Persons to be 
members of a Panel to consider the matter, and take any recommendations from 
that Panel into account before making the final decision. These provisions are 
incorporated into the Council’s constitution.

3.5 At its meeting on 13 October 2015, Council agreed that Mr Steve Murray and Mr 
Jeff Bright be appointed as the Council’s Independent Persons for a period of 
four years with immediate effect.  

3.6   The Localism Act does not prescribe a time limit on the terms of office of 
Independent Persons and these are therefore within the discretion of the council.
It would be open to the Council to carry out a fresh recruitment process at this 
time or to reappoint the current independent person for a further term. 

3.7 The Committee on Standards in Public Life in their January 2019 report on Local 
Government Ethical Standards provided a number of best practice 
recommendations that they expect all local authorities to implement, one of 
which is that local authorities should have access to at least two Independent 
Persons.  The review recommended a number of changes to primary legislation, 
which would be subject to Parliamentary timetabling, and also to secondary 
legislation and the Local Government Transparency Code.  As the future of the 
standards regime is changing and evolving it would seem preferable to extend at 
this stage. The Committee has acknowledged ‘the unexpected and 
unprecedented pressures that local authorities are facing this year with COVID-
19’.  It is their intention to write again in the autumn for a progress update against 
the recommendations. 

3.8 The Independent Persons have been approached and Mr Bright has indicated 
his wish for his appointment not to be extended.  Mr Murray has, however, 
indicated he would be happy to be appointed for a further term.  The extension 
would ensure that the Council has one Independent Person to call upon whilst a 
recruitment exercise is undertaken.

3.9 The Monitoring Officer recommends an extension of his appointment  to 1 
October 2021 to enable a recruitment exercise be carried and further 
consideration of the role. 

4.0 Alternative Options 
4.1 An alternative option is not to continue the appointment and therefore to have no 

appointed Independent Persons. This is contrary to the legislative requirements 

Page 56

Agenda Item 10



Page 3 of 4

and is therefore not recommended. The recommended option ensures the 
Council is able to call upon an Independent Person whilst a recruitment exercise 
is carried out.

5.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
5.1 Good governance underpins the delivery of the Council Plan priorities.

6.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
6.1  The Independent Persons may claim their reasonable expenses in carrying out 

their role.

6.2 A recruitment will require appropriate advertising, and training will be provided as 
appropriate which would be met within existing resources.

7.0 Legal 
7.1 Section 28 of the Localism Act 2011 requires a relevant authority to make 

provision for the appointment of at least one Independent Person “whose views 
are to be sought, and taken into account, by the authority before it makes its 
decision on an allegation that it has decided to investigate”. 

7.2 The Localism Act does not prescribe a time limit on the terms of office of 
independent persons and these are therefore within the discretion of the Council.

Equality and Diversity 
8.1.1 The report has no direct Equality and Diversity implications.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required
No Independent Person is 
appointed/position not 
continued

The position is a statutory 
role and relates to dealing 
with members code of 
conduct complaints

Consider reappointment at 
the present time pending 
full recruitment process;

Contact Officers 
Jane Holden, Principal Legal Officer:  jmholden@barrowbc.gov.uk
Debbie Storr, Head of Legal & Governance: dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk

Background Documents Available

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

Page 57

Agenda Item 10

mailto:jmholden@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk


Page 4 of 4

1. Minutes of Full Council – 
13 October 2015

2. Local Government Ethical 
Standards  - A Review by 
the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/the-council/barrow-
council/archived-council-minutes-agendas/archive-
council/

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploa
ds/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_C
O_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Stan
dards_v4_WEB.PDF

 

Page 58

Agenda Item 10

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/the-council/barrow-council/archived-council-minutes-agendas/archive-council/
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/the-council/barrow-council/archived-council-minutes-agendas/archive-council/
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/the-council/barrow-council/archived-council-minutes-agendas/archive-council/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF


COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 29th September, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
(Report of the meetings held on 4th August and 15th September, 
2020

Recommendations:

There were no recommendations referred to Council from the meetings held on 
4th August and 15th September, 2020.

Delegated Decisions

The matters determined by the Planning Committee in exercise of the powers 
which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the Minutes of 
the meetings noted above reproduced in Volume 2 2020/2021 of the printed 
Minutes.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 59

Agenda Item 11



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 29th September, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE
(Report of the meetings held 23rd July and 10th September, 
2020)

Recommendations:

There were no recommendations referred to Council from the meeting held on 
23rd July, 2020.

The meeting to be held on 16th September, 2020 had been cancelled.

Delegated Decisions

The matters determined by the Licensing Regulatory Committee in exercise of 
the powers which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the 
Minutes of the meeting noted above reproduced in Volume 2 2020/2021 of the 
printed Minutes.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 60

Agenda Item 11



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 29th September, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE
(Report of the meeting to held on 23rd July and 10th September, 
2020)

Recommendations:

The meetings to be held on 23rd July and 10th September, 2020 had been 
cancelled.

Page 61

Agenda Item 11



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 29th September, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
(Report of the meeting held on 27th July and 16th September, 
2020

Recommendations:

The recommendations of the Executive Committee meeting held on 27th July, 
2020 were reported to Council on 28th July, 2020.

The following recommendations have been referred to Council from the 
Executive Committee meeting held on 16th September, 2020.

Executive Committee – 16th September, 2020

1.0 Member Role Profiles (See Item 8)

1.1 The Monitoring Officer reported that it was good practice to have role 
descriptions for Councillors.  They assisted in Members understanding of 
the roles, and were available for people who may wish to know more 
about the role of the Councillor, and for those that may be thinking of 
standing for election.

 Members had indicated through the governance review that they would 
welcome further development of the role of spokesperson and the LGA 
governance review recommended that the roles of spokesperson be 
reviewed and a role description developed that included the key 
requirements that would be expected of Members who take on the role.  
Subsequent feedback had proposed that they be renamed Lead Members 
for the relevant area.  The draft profiles had included a suggested role 
profile for a Lead Member.  A review of the relevant areas had been 
undertaken linked to the new Council Plan with proposals for the following 
Lead Members to replace existing spokesperson roles.

 People
1. Community - Thriving communities, community development, voluntary 

sector;

Page 62

Agenda Item 11



2. Health and Wellbeing - Health and wellbeing across whole community and 
supporting older adults; and

3. Children, young people and families -‘Think Family’, supporting children 
and young people, schools and colleges.

 Place
4. Climate Emergency - Lead the Councils response to climate emergency;
5. Cleaner and greener neighbourhoods - Cleaner streets, parks, 

environment;
6. Heritage and Wildlife - Heritage and wildlife, site and habitat protection, 

conservation, Beautiful Places;
7. Housing Strategy and Homelessness (excluding Housing Stock); and
8. Arts, Culture and Leisure – Arts, Culture, Forum, Dock Museum and 

Leisure Centre.

 Prosperity
9. Economic development and strategic partnerships - Wider economic 

issues, LEP, Lancaster South Lakes, major projects, COVID recovery.

 Cross cutting
10. Equality, Diversity and Inclusion - Inclusive and diverse workplace, trained 

council and workforce, fair and accessible services for all.

The Member Training Working Group had considered the draft role profiles and 
following their feedback they were being recommended to Council for approval 
for incorporation into the Council’s Constitution. Under the Chair’s profiles, the 
Chair of the Executive Committee was also identified as Finance spokesperson 
for the Council.

The Member Training Working Group also recommended that within six months 
of being appointed Chair that a Member should attend Chairs Training and attend 
all other relevant training including all required training to ensure sufficient 
knowledge of the subject area for which they were Chair in order to effectively 
run the Committee or Council Meeting and that if they failed to attend such 
training that may result in the Member being removed as Chair.

Consideration had also been given as to whether the Council should seek annual 
reports from Members appointed to Outside Bodies as well as from Chairs and 
Lead Members at its AGM.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee had been 
requested to consider a review and rationalisation of Outside Bodies.

The Member Training Working Group had developed a template for feedback 
which was considered and Council was recommended to ask Members to 
provide an annual report if appointed to Outside Bodies or on their work as Lead 
Members. 

Page 63

Agenda Item 11



The Member Training Group had recommended that if adopted that be brought in 
two phases, with the Leader, Deputy Leader, Chairs of Committees and Lead 
Members completing it in the first phase and for other Members on Outside 
Bodies being included in phase 2 for the 2021/22 municipal year.

1.2 Recommendation:-

To recommend to Council:-

 1. That the role of Official Spokesperson be replaced by Lead Members 
as detailed within paragraph 3.2 of the report;

 2. That the Member role profiles as attached as Appendix 1 to the report 
be agreed for incorporation into the Council’s Constitution; 

 3. That Members on Outside Bodies, Chairs and Lead Members should 
be requested to provide an annual report to Council based on the 
template as attached at Appendix 2 on the work of the body and its 
contribution to the Borough and the wider area with implementation 
as detailed within the report; and

 4. That training for Chairs should be undertaken within six months of 
becoming a Chair.

2.0 Amended Code of Conduct for Members (See Item 9)

2.1 The Monitoring Officer reported that on 30 July 2020 the Audit and 
Governance Committee had considered the draft Model Code of Conduct 
which had been produced by the Local Government Association in 
response to recommendations arising from the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life following their report on Local Government Ethical Standards 
which had been published in January 2019. The recommendations 
provided some best practice recommendations, one of which had included 
a recommendation to the Local Government Association that they create 
an updated model code of conduct, in consultation with representative 
bodies of councillors and officers of all tiers of local government.

 Members of that Committee had asked that an earlier review be 
undertaken of the Council’s code with regards in particular to bullying and 
social media provisions with a report for consideration by Members at the 
earliest opportunity.

 The Committee for Standards in Public Life in their report also identified 
some best practice recommendations which represented a benchmark for 
ethical practice and which they expected any local authority should 
implement. Feedback on the best practice recommendations was being 
sought in the Autumn on progress on these and a further report would be 
taken to the Audit and Governance Committee to review them.  

Page 64

Agenda Item 11



 The principal proposed amendments to the Code of Conduct at this stage 
add:

 (i) an obligation not to bully or harass any person;
 (ii) definitions of ‘bullying’ and ‘harassment’;
 (iii) examples of behaviour amounting to bullying or harassment;
 (iv) requirement to comply with any protocol which the Council seeks to 

regulate conduct through; and
 (v) requirement to co-operate with any standards investigation and 

prohibiting trivial or malicious allegations against another councillor.

 Social Media had also been flagged as an area where more guidance was 
needed.  Guidance around the code and social media was being reviewed 
and would be presented to the Audit and Governance Committee for 
feedback and endorsement when the amendments to the Code had been 
determined following which it was proposed that training would be 
provided to all Members. 

 The Member Training Working Group had recommended that training on 
the Code of Conduct for Members should be required on induction, 
following any revisions to the code, and offered after ordinary elections 
with a report to Audit and Governance Committee on attendance at such 
training.

 The Code of Conduct incorporating all the above amendments was 
considered by the Committee.

 Though not legally required to do so, parish and town councils within the 
borough had customarily adopted the code of conduct of their ‘principal 
authority’.  That achieved consistency across the borough and enabled 
members who were town/parish and district councillors to work to a 
common code. If approved the amended code would be made available 
with a view to them adopting it.

2.2 Recommendation:-

To recommend the Council:-

   1. To agree adoption of the amended Code of Conduct for Members as 
set out in Appendix 1 of the report;

   2. Subject to the amendments being confirmed by Council that the 
Monitoring Officer make the amended Code of Conduct available to 
all town and parish councils in the Borough of Barrow, with a view to 
those councils adopting it for consistency; and

Page 65

Agenda Item 11



  3. To agree that training for Members on the Code of Conduct was 
required for all Members and co-opted Members of the Council as 
detailed within the report.

Delegated Decisions

The matters determined by the Executive Committee in exercise of the powers 
which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the Minutes of 
the meeting noted above reproduced in Volume 2 (2020/2021).

Background Papers

Nil

Page 66

Agenda Item 11



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 29th September, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
(Report of the meeting held on 30th July, 2020)

Recommendations:

There were no recommendations referred to Council from the above meeting.

Delegated Decisions

The matters determined by the Audit Committee in exercise of the powers which 
have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the Minutes of the 
meeting noted above reproduced in Volume 2 (2020/21) of the printed Minutes.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 67

Agenda Item 11



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 29th September, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
(Report of the meeting held on 22nd September, 2020)

Recommendations:

If necessary an addendum to this report will deal with any recommendations from 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held on 22nd September, 2020.

Delegated Decisions

The matters determined by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in exercise of 
the powers which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the 
Minutes of the meeting noted above reproduced in Volume 2 (2020/2021) of the 
printed Minutes.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 68

Agenda Item 11



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

COUNCIL
29 September 2020

Appointments to Committees to fill Vacancies

Report from:  Monitoring Officer
Report Author: Jon Huck (Democratic Services Manager)
Wards:  N/A

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 

1.1 The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 
places a duty on the Council to give effect to the allocation of seats in 
accordance with the wishes of political groups. The Labour Group has given 
notice of its wish to make changes to the membership of the under-
mentioned Committees due to the resignation of Councillor Pidduck.

2.0 Recommendations 
It is recommended that Council confirms the appointments of a 
Councillor as an ordinary Member on the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and a Councillor as a Substitute Member on the Audit and 
Governance Committee from the Labour Group.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 

places a duty on the Council to give effect to the allocation of seats in 
accordance with the wishes of political groups. The Labour Group has given 
notice of its wish to make changes to the membership of the under-
mentioned Committees due to the resignation of Councillor Pidduck.

4.0 Consultation 
The Leader of the Labour Group has been consulted. 

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 Not Applicable.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 Governance arrangements underpin the Council’s decision-making 

processes.

Page 69

Agenda Item 12



7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 Not Applicable.

Legal 
7.1.2 No issues to raise.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – the report has no 

direct Equality and Diversity implications.

Risk

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Committee is not properly 
constituted.

Challenge to decision-
making process.

Ensure make up in 
accordance with 
constitution and 
legislation.

Contact Officers 
Jon Huck, jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk

Background Documents Available - Nil

Page 70

Agenda Item 12


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	7 EXPLORATION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM AND DEVOLUTION
	8 MEMBER ROLE PROFILES
	MEMBER ROLE PROFILES APPENDIX1 - final
	Member Annual Feedback Form - Draft V3 - final

	9 AMENDED CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS
	Members Code of Conduct Const -

	10 APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON
	11 (A) TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING COMMITTEES AND CONSIDER RECOMMENDATIONS:
	12 APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES TO FILL VACANCIES

